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          1  LANDMARKS, SITING And MARITIME USES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: LU No. 663,

          3  Brooklyn Community Board 16, C050481 PCK.

          4  Application submitted by the Department of Probation

          5  and the Department of Citywide Administrative

          6  Services, pursuant to Section 197-c of the New York

          7  City Charter for site selection and acquisition of

          8  property located at 2440 Fulton Street, Block 1554,

          9  p/o Lot 16, Borough of Brooklyn, Community District

         10  16, for use as an alternative to detention program

         11  facility.

         12                 We had started this hearing, I think

         13  it was Thursday, or Wednesday, I'm not sure, and we

         14  recessed to give our Council Member Erik Dilan and

         15  the Department an opportunity to see if things can

         16  get worked out.

         17                 I just want to introduce the members

         18  that are here. From the left, Councilman Hiram

         19  Monserrate, Councilman Tony Avella, Councilman Leroy

         20  Comrie, Councilman Charles Barron, Council Member

         21  Annabel Palma, Councilman Simcha Felder, Councilman

         22  Eric Dilan, and Councilman Tony Avella. And Council

         23  Member Melinda Katz.

         24                 We will now hear testimony again,

         25  short testimony, from the Department of Probation
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          2  from Jonnie Mae Howard.

          3                 He's filling out a card.

          4                 MS. HOWARD: Respectfully

          5  acknowledging the Chair, Council members, good

          6  morning. I'm Jonnie Mae Howard, Branch Chief, New

          7  York City Department of Probation.

          8                 Councilman Dilan graciously made

          9  himself available to myself as well as Deputy

         10  Commissioner Marchiano and Chief of Staff Judy Lapof

         11  (phonetic) on Friday, regarding this matter. We

         12  thank him for making himself available to meet with

         13  us, as well as to visit this site. As a result of

         14  our getting together, and concerns that he brought

         15  to the table, it has been stipulated that the

         16  capacity of the program will now be 90 with 75

         17  percent of the slots being available to residents of

         18  Brooklyn.

         19                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Good

         20  morning. My name is Frank Marchiano, I'm the Deputy

         21  Commissioner for Administration over at the

         22  Department of Probation. As Ms. Howard just

         23  testified, we met with the Councilman on Friday, and

         24  he asked to tour the site, which he did. We all went

         25  over to 2440 Fulton Street, where the ATD Center is
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          2  currently running, and in an agreement with the

          3  Councilman to better serve his district, as well as

          4  the people of Brooklyn, the facility is located in

          5  Brooklyn. We have just agreed, and I have signed off

          6  on a confirmation at that agreement that we will

          7  reduce the number of students in the ATD center from

          8  125 to 90, and we will allow for the capacity to

          9  reach 75, but that would be 75 percent, I'm sorry,

         10  of the students or the youth in that facility to be

         11  from Brooklyn, so that would better serve the

         12  Councilman and the Borough of Brooklyn, since it is

         13  located in Brooklyn.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Councilman Dilan,

         15  do you have a statement to make?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Just to, one,

         17  Mr. Chair, thank you for allowing the process to go

         18  forward, you know, in light of some difficulties

         19  that occurred in the beginning. I did have the

         20  opportunity to meet with the Department of Probation

         21  on Friday, and just thinking about this over the

         22  weekend, I came to the conclusion that there was,

         23  you know, basically no right or wrong decision on

         24  this matter.

         25                 I did get a chance to tour the site,
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          2  you know, there were many young individuals who

          3  probably needed some guidance for the Department of

          4  Probation, but overall I felt that there were a lot

          5  of young individuals there that, you know, that

          6  could be helped and could be benefitted by this

          7  program.

          8                 One of the concerns that I did have

          9  overall is that when I did visit the site it was

         10  tough for me to gauge how many children actually

         11  worked from Brooklyn and how, you know, Brooklyn

         12  basically benefitted from this slot. And I wanted to

         13  be mindful of Queens, and I think the Department was

         14  right to do everything that they could to try to

         15  save money by siting a dual-borough facility, in my

         16  district.

         17                 But I still wanted to make sure

         18  overall that Brooklyn was primarily served above all

         19  others, since we had to take on the siting. And I'm

         20  please that they have agreed. And just in light of

         21  all of us being term limited, that they now will

         22  have the authority to sign, it will be a 15-year

         23  lease, they have also agreed in writing that this

         24  agreement terms apply to the life of the lease,

         25  which I also felt was very important.
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          2                 I know this probably was not an easy

          3  decision for the Department of Probation to make, to

          4  agree to all three terms, however, just in the

          5  spirit of just full cooperation and agreement, I'm

          6  glad that they did agree to it and I would recommend

          7  that the Committee approve the application with the

          8  conditions stated in the letter. And just to add to

          9  the Department of Probation, that my office and this

         10  Committee will continue to monitor the terms of this

         11  agreement throughout the life of the lease.

         12                 With that being said, I just hope

         13  that you guys could go out there and help the

         14  children of Brooklyn as best possible, and I'm

         15  pretty sure that you guys will do a good job.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: I

         17  thank you very much. And we will continue to work

         18  with you as well going forward on this. Thank you

         19  for your cooperation.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: I appreciate

         21  that.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I have one

         23  question, Council Member Dilan.

         24                 I just wanted to ask one question. I

         25  think some of my colleagues may be interested as
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          2  well. If not, I'd like to ask it anyway.

          3                 Under the agreement that you've

          4  worked out with them, if, for example, they do not,

          5  I'm sure that won't be the case, but if for some

          6  reason they do not fulfill their agreement, legally

          7  is the lease contingent upon that or not?

          8                 What I want to know, is the lease

          9  broken?

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Well, you know,

         11  without being an attorney, my gut feeling is that,

         12  you know, no. I think this is, you know, just a good

         13  faith agreement that we have and when I'm operating,

         14  you know, everybody knows me, I'm old fashioned, I

         15  operate on a man's word, a woman's word. So,

         16  basically that's what I'm operating on, to back it

         17  up. And I trust that they will do it now.

         18                 I think one thing that we can explore

         19  as a Committee, is that maybe the Department of

         20  Probation provides us with some sort of annual

         21  report, that allows them to disclose as much as

         22  they're allowed to disclose. I know there are some

         23  sensitive information that they cannot disclose, but

         24  that in my opinion would also be helpful. But I'm

         25  pretty confident that they will stick to this
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          2  agreement.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

          4                 Do any of my colleagues have any

          5  questions? Council Member Barron and then Council

          6  Member Comrie.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You know, I'm

          8  just curious, did you not know that you should speak

          9  to the Councilman at some point? I mean, it went

         10  through ULURP, it went through the Planning Board,

         11  the Borough Board, the Planning Commission, did you

         12  not know that you should talk to the Councilman so

         13  that we didn't have to come the last minute and get

         14  all this stuff together? Your sister took the heat

         15  for you, so I'm glad you came in. She took the heat

         16  last time.

         17                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO:

         18  Actually we didn't think there was going to be heat.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Without

         20  meeting with the Council Member at all? Did you

         21  think you were going to come here, ask for approval

         22  and get no heat and you didn't even meet with the

         23  Council member?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Simply

         25  because of the fact that we were unaware of the
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          2  process.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: The ULURP

          4  process?

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: This

          6  is one of the first times that we've been through

          7  this process, and what we do is follow the schedule

          8  that's given to us from the City Planning

          9  Commission.

         10                 We've attended all the hearings and

         11  we are put on schedule. There was no such schedule

         12  made to sit with the Councilman so we just followed

         13  the schedule.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You knew you

         15  were going in a Council Member's district, right?

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Oh,

         17  absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Did you know

         19  Council Member Dilan was the Council member?

         20                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: You didn't

         22  think it would be good to reach out? You didn't need

         23  to schedule for that? Somebody didn't tell you that?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: The

         25  schedule actually sent it --
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, I'm just

          3  saying, you need a schedule to tell you to sit down

          4  and talk to a Council Member whose district you are

          5  bringing a program in. So, if you don't see that on

          6  the schedule, then you don't think that that should

          7  happen, unless somebody --

          8                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Going

          9  forward, Councilman --

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Well, let me

         11  finish.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: -- We

         13  will.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Because I want

         15  you to get a little heat too.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Oh,

         17  okay.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I don't want

         19  her to take it all.

         20                 You didn't think that, if you came in

         21  a program in my district, unless you see it on the

         22  schedule, did you learn something from this?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Oh,

         24  absolutely.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: So, if you
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          2  come in another district, you won't wait to see it

          3  on a schedule, you'll meet with that Council Member?

          4                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: That's

          5  what I was just going to try to -- we certainly will

          6  going forward.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I've never

          8  heard of such that you wouldn't need a schedule for

          9  somebody to tell you to meet with a Council member

         10  who you're bringing a program in their district.

         11                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Just

         12  not to defend the situation or prolong it any

         13  longer, but when it was sent to the community board,

         14  we had felt that all of the proper people in that

         15  community would have been notified, and it wasn't

         16  our place to move any further, just through the

         17  community board process, which they had a public

         18  hearing as well.

         19                 So, that was our understanding of the

         20  information getting to the community.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Who's the

         22  first people you met with about this issue?

         23  Community Board members?

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: We had

         25  a schedule which they supplied us with, and the
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          2  first public hearing was at the community board

          3  review.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: I mean, if the

          5  first people you thought you needed to meet with was

          6  community board members --

          7                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: That

          8  was what was provided to us in the application.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: All right.

         10  Well, I hope this doesn't happen again, because it's

         11  very disrespectful.

         12                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Oh,

         13  absolutely.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: To the

         15  Council.

         16                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: And it

         17  wasn't done purposely, and we apologize for that.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Thank you, Mr.

         19  Chair.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Council Member

         21  Comrie.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What's your

         23  percentage of population, as far as the boroughs are

         24  concerned? If you put in a stipulation here that 75

         25  percent comes from Brooklyn in the future, but
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          2  what's your present population of your enrollees?

          3  What areas are they from?

          4                 MS. HOWARD: The present population is

          5  approximately 60 percent coming from Brooklyn, 40

          6  percent coming from Queens.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And where are

          8  these other 35 people going to get relocated to? Now

          9  that you're dropping from 125 people to 90 people?

         10                 MS. HOWARD: Again, it will reduce our

         11  capacity by 35. In regards to where they will go,

         12  that's something that's going to be determined

         13  through the Family Court System.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And how many

         15  locations do you have under your jurisdiction?

         16                 MS. HOWARD: We have three locations.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Where are

         18  they?

         19                 MS. HOWARD: The Brooklyn/Queens

         20  Location at 2440 Fulton Street, the Bronx location

         21  at 426 Willis Avenue, and the Manhattan location at

         22  346 Broadway.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Say the Bronx

         24  one again?

         25                 MS. HOWARD: 426 Willis Avenue.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So right now

          3  what's the total capacity of those sites?

          4                 MS. HOWARD: The capacity of the Bronx

          5  site is 90. The capacity of the Manhattan site is

          6  70.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And about how

          8  many people do you process during the year? To go

          9  through this alternative to detention?

         10                 MS. HOWARD: It averages between 1,500

         11  to 2,000 youth.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So you're

         13  talking about 2,000 people per year that go through

         14  this, what is it, three-month plan?

         15                 MS. HOWARD: Two months.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Two-month

         17  plan?

         18                 MS. HOWARD: Routinely, yes. About 60

         19  days.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So that's

         21  roughly a couple hundred people a month.

         22                 MS. HOWARD: Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So you're

         24  going to run out of space to put all of them?

         25                 MS. HOWARD: We are.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: You're going

          3  to be looking for other facilities.

          4                 I mean, how quickly can you get down

          5  to this number to meet this agreement to make this

          6  cap?

          7                 MS. HOWARD: Well, currently the

          8  Brooklyn Queens site is not at capacity. Just given

          9  the trends that we've seen in the past, our numbers

         10  begin to rise this time of year, and they continue

         11  to rise through the spring, and so we ran at our

         12  peak from say November, late November, through

         13  April.

         14                 The rest of the year we're really

         15  running below capacity.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So, you're not

         17  at 90 now is what you're saying?

         18                 MS. HOWARD: No, we're not. We're at

         19  approximately 75, I believe it was when I was there

         20  on Friday.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Okay.

         22                 And these are the only sites that

         23  you're using for alternative to detention? Are you

         24  linked up with any other, like Samaritans or any

         25  other program to house these young people?
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          2                 MS. HOWARD: No, we're not.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So this is

          4  totally direct from the courts to your facility?

          5                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And the courts

          7  don't have any of the programs linked with any other

          8  providers, provides the same type of alternative

          9  detention?

         10                 MS. HOWARD: No, not where the child

         11  was allowed to remain at home, no.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: What do you

         13  mean allowed to remain at home?

         14                 MS. HOWARD: These are children that

         15  continue to live at home and they come to this

         16  program day-to-day.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So they're

         18  just there from 9:00 then they go back to their own

         19  residence?

         20                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: So you have

         22  some other programs that are resident programs, or

         23  where the person stays 24 hours?

         24                 MS. HOWARD: Department of Probation

         25  doesn't, but there are other programs available to
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          2  Family Court.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Family Court.

          4                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: That's what I

          6  thought. Okay.

          7                 And those programs are 24-hour type

          8  programs?

          9                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: But that's not

         11  run under your Department?

         12                 MS. HOWARD: No.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Those are all

         14  with private providers?

         15                 MS. HOWARD: Yes, and considered

         16  detention facilities.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And considered

         18  full-time detention facilities?

         19                 MS. HOWARD: Correct.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: And you

         21  wouldn't know what those were or a list of those

         22  are? Could that be made available to us?

         23                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO:

         24  Councilman, I think they're run through the other

         25  departments and we're talking places I believe like
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          2  Spofford Facility and facilities which are the

          3  detention facilities.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Yes.

          5                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: So,

          6  it's through another agency. Ours is an alternative

          7  too. So that's when we're talking about being at

          8  home, go into a school, or a school type of setting

          9  and then going home, instead of going to a detention

         10  facility.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: I'm just

         12  concerned overall where these kids are going and how

         13  they're going to get there and what kind of

         14  facilities and treatment that they have.

         15                 You know, I'm from, I represent

         16  Community Boards 12 and 13 in Queens, and we have an

         17  overabundance of facilities, the alternative to

         18  incarceration that run by the Samaritans or the

         19  Little Flower, other agencies that are transitional,

         20  and, you know, we have an overabundance, but then we

         21  have probably the highest percentage of any

         22  community boards in the City, and I'm just concerned

         23  with the shifting, where these people are going to

         24  go, where these young people are going to go. They

         25  need quality help and they need locations that are
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          2  going to provide a full complement of services, I'm

          3  concerned because most of these private providers do

          4  not provide a complete level of service. So, I'd

          5  like to see the Department of Probation actually do

          6  more where they have a full complement of services,

          7  as opposed to these private providers. Because what

          8  happens is, in my residential community they're

          9  loitering in the streets, they're congregating at

         10  different public locations in their down time, as

         11  opposed to spending time at the facility. It's a big

         12  problem in my community, and I know other

         13  communities.

         14                 So, I'm concerned about that, Mr.

         15  Chair. If we could get a report on that back to this

         16  Committee, I would appreciate that. I'm sure your

         17  staff people will relay my whole request to you.

         18  Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you very

         20  much.

         21                 Does anyone else have any questions?

         22                 Okay, so just before we take a vote,

         23  thank you for your testimony.

         24                 DEPUTY COMMISSIONER MARCHIANO: Thank

         25  you. Thank you, all.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you for

          3  your testimony.

          4                 I just wanted to mention two things.

          5  First of all, in terms of this item in and of

          6  itself, I'm happy that Councilman Dilan is satisfied

          7  with the agreement that is brokered between the

          8  Department, the Administration, and himself. As far

          9  as I'm concerned, I don't trust anybody, besides

         10  God, and I'm happy that you trust them. And I hope

         11  it works out. I really do. It's not that I trust any

         12  one of you any more than I distrust anyone else. I

         13  just don't trust anybody. But I am hopeful that your

         14  commitment in fact will work out. For the future, as

         15  some of my colleagues mentioned, I think in the

         16  future, if there is any way legally that these

         17  things come up, that the lease be binding and

         18  dependent upon things like this, these types of

         19  agreement, I would much rather have it that way so

         20  that they be safe, so that Councilman Dilan doesn't

         21  have to be such a nice guy.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: Now you've

         23  forced me to respond for the record, because I don't

         24  want my constituents to think I've absolutely lost

         25  my mind.
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          2                 Okay, just for the record, you know,

          3  I can't say that I 100 percent approve of this

          4  project. I approve of the project going forward, but

          5  the facts are the facts, and these are the facts of

          6  this particular Land Use siting which I do support.

          7  The fact is they were there for a year and a half

          8  before they ever came to this Committee to ask for a

          9  siting. The fact is that even if we disapprove this

         10  siting proposal, that the Department of Probation

         11  would be allowed to remain at the site. So, no

         12  matter which way we go in this direction, they are

         13  allowed to operate. So, it's not that I do trust

         14  them, it's that I have to trust them. And there's a

         15  big difference there.

         16                 Now, again, I think in my experience

         17  with both of these individuals, you know, they may

         18  have not known the Land Use process, but I know

         19  there's a lot of my constituents that, you know,

         20  don't know that Jay Walking is a crime and they

         21  still get stuck with the ticket. But you know, all

         22  that being said, you know, I think the best thing

         23  for me to do was to put all of the things that went

         24  wrong on this application aside, and find out what

         25  worked best for my constituents primarily, and
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          2  secondarily the Borough of Brooklyn, and then on a

          3  larger scale the entire City of New York.

          4                 Now, I will say an alternative to

          5  detention facility is, you know, I would certainly

          6  accept that much sooner than the full fledged

          7  detention facility in a second. So, you know, just

          8  generally my gut feeling says if we were just to

          9  approve this, which I believe we could have done it.

         10  The application still would have been in my

         11  district, they still would have been serving up to

         12  150 individuals, which is what the Brooklyn Borough

         13  President's Office signed off on, and I believe that

         14  there would have been no way possible to tell how

         15  many individuals came from Brooklyn or from other

         16  parts of the City.

         17                 So, in my estimation, I feel that

         18  this is the best that I could get. You know, with

         19  all that background information now on record, you

         20  know, I still recommend, even though over my

         21  objections, I still recommend that this Committee

         22  approve the siting.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Thank you.

         24                 I apologize if I was not clear in

         25  what I was trying to say. That happens to me quite
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          2  often.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: No.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: But my comments

          5  were not in any way to paint myself like somebody

          6  who would not have done the same thing you did. And

          7  I'm delighted to hear that you don't trust them

          8  either. But the point that I was just trying to make

          9  is that as a body, I feel that when it comes to

         10  issues like this, I feel I'm relying on the fact

         11  that you, as the Council member, are saying that you

         12  are comfortable with it, that's the point. And that

         13  I do trust. So, having said that I feel comfortable

         14  with it because you feel comfortable with it, and

         15  that's important to me.

         16                 And I know that there's no question

         17  that you're doing whatever you can to work out an

         18  agreement that would be best for your community

         19  first and for the City as a whole.

         20                 Second, this is the last Landmarks

         21  meeting. I have been told by the staff that it is

         22  the last Landmarks meeting. I wanted to thank,

         23  again, all my colleagues who have been on the

         24  Landmarks Committee, Councilman Koppell, Council

         25  Member Palma, Councilman Barron, Councilman Comrie,
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          2  Councilman Oddo. Did I miss anybody? Council Member

          3  Perkins. It's been an honor. And as I mentioned last

          4  time, there are rumors floating that all of the

          5  contenders for Speaker have been asked whether I

          6  will continue to be the Chair of the Landmarks,

          7  because if I will they will not support those

          8  Speaker candidates. But really, when I was appointed

          9  the Chair of Landmarks, I remember when Speaker

         10  Miller called me -- Charles, this is pretty funny.

         11  No, no, I'm serious, you don't have to listen -- but

         12  the morning before the first meeting Councilman,

         13  when Speaker Miller called me and said you're going

         14  to be the Chair of Landmarks, I said what's a

         15  landmark? I had no idea. And when he said, no, this

         16  is a good thing, a good thing for you for many

         17  different reasons, which I won't elaborate upon, I

         18  said I don't know what a landmark is. What am I

         19  going to do with a landmark? I was adamantly

         20  opposed. I said, Aging. I know what it means to age,

         21  you know? But a landmark?

         22                 So, I could say with the help, with

         23  God's help, with the help of my colleagues, and

         24  certainly with the help of the entire staff here,

         25  that are just extraordinary, I've gotten to know a
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          2  little bit about landmarks, some would say I got to

          3  know more about what is not a landmark. But in any

          4  case, I want to thank you all for giving me the

          5  honor to be able to work together with you in this

          6  capacity over this time.

          7                 And with that, I'd like to recommend

          8  a yes vote on this item.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Just one

         10  thing, Mr. Chair. I just wish you would consult with

         11  God to see if you can extend the trust just a little

         12  bit like the Committee members, or family members,

         13  or close friends. I just thought you might want to

         14  ask your maker --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Okay. I think

         17  God might allow you to do that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: I watched the

         19  Wizard of Oz last night.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Chair Felder.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Yes.

         22                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         23  Barron.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BARRON: Yes.

         25                 And Erik, I think there is other ways
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          2  we can hold people accountable, other than legally,

          3  you know, when they bring things in our communities,

          4  if the community doesn't appreciate or if they fall

          5  back on commitments, you know, your community is my

          6  community, and there are other ways we can hold

          7  people accountable and we can work on that together.

          8                 Yes.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         10  Comrie.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: Permission to

         12  explain my vote?

         13                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         14                 I also want to congratulate Council

         15  Member Dilan for effectively reducing, you know, the

         16  amount of people and making sure that slots are

         17  primarily from Brooklyn, I think that this shows

         18  that the is trying to do his best to make sure that

         19  his community is protected and thought of primarily.

         20                 You know, I just raised my issues

         21  because I know when they go from one area they've

         22  got to go somewhere else, and, you know, the entire

         23  City is our community. We have to make sure, number

         24  one, these kids are getting a higher quality of

         25  intervention that they have gotten before, because I

                                                            28

          1  LANDMARKS, SITING And MARITIME USES

          2  know that these private halfway houses are not

          3  getting the proper level of intervention where we

          4  have too many kids that are undomiciled as a result

          5  of putting halfway houses where people don't really

          6  care about them. I happen to have interactions with

          7  the Department of Probation before, and I would

          8  prefer them to be, have a higher role in this than a

          9  private halfway house, it doesn't have the same

         10  level of concern. And that's why I brought up these

         11  issues. I think that it's important that if we're

         12  going to give children opportunities to change their

         13  life, we give them a complete opportunity and not

         14  just somebody's idea of a caseworker with 14 or 20

         15  kids in a private home where the kids are all over

         16  the place, and not getting focused on intervention.

         17                 So, and I also just want to

         18  congratulate the Chair, since he did speak about his

         19  immersion into this new committee, but I think he's

         20  done an excellent job over the past four years, and

         21  I congratulate him on his fair-minded, his ability

         22  to commonly reason and compassion and to keep us all

         23  laughing as we deliberate over these important

         24  issues.

         25                 I vote aye.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Does that mean if

          3  you're the Speaker I will remain the Landmarks

          4  Chair?

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: No

          6  commitments. No commitment.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: What?

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER COMRIE: No commitment.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Oh. Take your

         10  compliments.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DILAN: It's a good

         12  thing you didn't answer that question.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

         14  Koppell.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FELDER: Don't say

         16  anything about my being Chair.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL: Let me say in

         18  respect and deference to the member in whose

         19  district this facility is placed, I will vote yes.

         20                 However, I have very severe

         21  reservations about placing a facility like this in

         22  the same building as a school. I think it's a

         23  mistake.

         24                 I frankly think that this would not

         25  happen in some communities. And I don't mean to be,
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          2  you know, I'm joining with some of my colleagues who

          3  say that some communities are overburdened because

          4  perhaps they don't have the same political moxy or

          5  voice or whatever. This would not happen in my

          6  community. We would not put a facility like this

          7  with a school. It wouldn't happen. They would

          8  literally lynch me, if you will. I shouldn't use

          9  that term. They'd cut off my head before they would

         10  allow this to happen. And the Department of

         11  Probation shouldn't be doing this. But because the

         12  Councilman is supporting it, and I guess partly

         13  because it's there, I'll vote yes.

         14                 But I want to say to you that, it's

         15  bad public policy. It's bad public policy. We all

         16  know that young people are affected by their peers.

         17  And we've put a lot of peers who have a lot of

         18  problems in with kids who don't have problems, you

         19  can be sure that some of those kids who don't have

         20  problems are going to get problems. I believe that.

         21                 And that doesn't mean that I don't

         22  think the kids who you deal with shouldn't get more

         23  attention than they get now, but they shouldn't be

         24  mixed with the general population in this way. It's

         25  a mistake. With respect, I vote yes.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Council Member

          3  Palma.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PALMA: Aye.

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

          6  five in the affirmative, none in the negative, and

          7  no abstentions, the aforementioned item is approved

          8  and referred to the full committee.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 11:20 a.m.)
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          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter, do hereby certify that the

         11  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         12  within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 19th day of December 2005.
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